
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, February 3, 2014 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
a. Welcome to New City Administrator 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Swearing in of new Police Officer by Chief Rich Sebens 
b. Alan Kingsley, Car Show Committee 
 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. January 21, 2014 City Council Action Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations please contact Alissa Angelo, 
Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
February 3, 2014 



  

PUBLIC HEARING  
Storm Water Utility Fees – Adoption of Monthly Fees 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – David Kinney 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
l. Council Decision on Resolution No. 907 
m. Council Decision on Resolution No. 908 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Lease Agreement, 352 E. Florence Street       Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Building Renovations at 260 N. 2nd Avenue      Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None  
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
a. Appointment of Municipal Court Judge 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Review of City Charter 
b. Library Foundation Presentation 
 

 
ADJOURN 

Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
February 3, 2014 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

FEBRUARY 2014
Monday February 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 4 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday February 11 Public Safety Commission 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Thursday February 13 Tour of Storm Drainage 
Facilities 2:30 p.m. Santiam Water Control District 

(248 E. Water Street) 

Thursday February 13 Adaptive Management Group 
Meeting 3:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday February 14 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Wednesday February 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday February 17 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS’ DAY 
Tuesday February 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday February 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2014
Monday March 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 4 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday March 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday March 14 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday March 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday March 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday March 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

APRIL 2014
Tuesday April 1 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 7 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday April 11 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday April 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday April 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
February 3, 2014 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 1 of 3 
January 21, 2014 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

January 21, 2014 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 6:48 P.M.         Time End: 8:08 P.M. 

WORK SESSION 

COUNCIL STAFF 
Mayor Scott Vigil (excused) Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder
Councilor Emily Gooch Christine Shaffer, Finance Director
Councilor Catherine Hemshorn (excused) David Rhoten, City Attorney
Councilor Jennifer Niegel (excused)  
Councilor Henry Porter  
Councilor Brian Quigley  

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG

COUNCIL  STAFF  
Mayor Scott Vigil (excused)  Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Emily Gooch  Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Catherine Hemshorn (excused)  David Kinney, Public Works Director 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel  Louise Meyers, Library Director 
Councilor Henry Porter  Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
  David Rhoten, City Attorney 

 
AGENDA  ACTIONS 

WORK SESSION (6:48 P.M. TO 6:59 P.M.) 
Municipal Court Judge Interview Questions  Discussion and review of Municipal Court Judge 

questions. 
 

REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M. TO 7:40 P.M.) 
Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Steve Frank, 1515 E. Jefferson Street 
 

 
Spoke about Storm Water Utility Fee and proposed 
annexations. Encouraged the Council to hold Town 
Hall meetings. 

Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 

 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
 
Councilor Gooch was contacted by a potential 
medical marijuana business owner. 

Consent Agenda 
a. January 6, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion passed 4:0. 
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 2 of 3 
January 21, 2014 

Public Hearing 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 
 

c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents Testimony 
e. Opponents Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
 
h. Questions from Council 

 
 

 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
 
l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 965 

 
 
 

m. Council Decision on Resolution No. 909 

 
7:07 p.m. 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report included 
in the Council packet. 
 
None 
None 
None 
None 
None 
 
Councilor Niegel asked if staff received any 
questions from the public about the proposed 
annexations. Staff dealt with a handful of inquiries. 
 
None 
7:20 p.m. 
None 
 
Motion from Councilor Gooch, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to adopt Ordinance No. 965 as 
presented. Motion passed 4:0.  
 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to adopt Resolution No. 909 as 
presented. Motion passed 4:0. 

Unfinished Business  None 
New Business 
a. Resolution No. 910, City Administrator Evaluation Process 
 
 
 
b. Ordinance No. 966, Amending SMC 5.08 and 5.12 to Regulate 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries within the City of Stayton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c. Appointment of a Council Representative to the Adaptive 

Management Group 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to adopt Resolution No. 910 as 
presented. Motion passed 4:0.  
 
Motion from Councilor Gooch, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley, to adopt Ordinance No. 966 as 
amended to reference Medical Marijuana Facility.  
 
Discussion – Brief discussion of location of facility. 
 
Motion passed 4:0.  
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to appoint Councilor Niegel as 
the Council Representative to the Adaptive 
Management Group. Motion passed 4:0.  

Staff / Commission Reports 
a. Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer 
 
b. Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens 

 
None 
 
Brief discussion of shoplifting prevention. 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 3 of 3 
January 21, 2014 

c. Public Works Director’s Report – Dave Kinney 
 
d. Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
 
e. Library Director’s Report – Louise Meyers 

None 
 
None 
 
Discussion of cultural passes and statistics.  

Presentations / Comments From the Public  None 
Business from the City Administrator  None 
Business from the Mayor  None 
Business from the Council  None 
Future Agenda Items 
a. Review of City Charter 
b. Storm Water and Sanitary Sewer Utility Fee Public Hearing 

(February 3, 2014) 

 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY 2014, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:      By:     
    A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:     Attest:     

  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
             
Date:    Transcribed by:              
      Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



City of Stayton 
Finance Department 

Public Works Department  
Planning and Development Department 

www.staytonoregon.gov 
 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 THRU: Christine Shaffer, Interim City Administrator 

 FROM: David Kinney, Public Works Director 

 DATE: February 3, 2014 

 SUBJECT: Storm Water Utility Fees – Adoption of Monthly Fee   
 

 

ISSUE 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not the City should adopt a storm drainage utility 
fee as part of the monthly utility bill and concurrently reduce the sanitary sewer monthly sewer rate. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 
The City Council set a public hearing for 7:00 p.m. on February 3, 2014 to consider the proposed 
storm drainage utility fees and rate structures.  Public notice was published as a display ad in the 
Stayton Mail on January 22, 2014.  As of January 27th the City had not received any comments. 

 

ENCLOSURES: 
1. Resolution 907 – Sanitary Sewer Rates 

2. Resolution 908 – Storm Drainage Utility Fees 

 

BACKGROUND 
In December 2013, the Council approved Ordinance 964 to adopt Stayton Municipal Code Chapter 
13.32 “Storm Drainage Utility”.  SMC 13.32 creates a separate storm drainage fund and authorize 
establishment of a monthly storm drainage utility fee to pay for storm sewers and storm drainage 
maintenance and improvements.   

City Council Staff Report, Storm Drainage Utility Fee  Page 1 of 4 
February 3, 2014 
 



The proposed storm drainage utility fee will take effect on April 1, 2014.  Staff estimates the utility 
fee will generate the following amounts: 

April to June, 2014 $   55,000 

FY 2014-2015  $ 230,000 

FY 2015-2016  $ 260,000 

Proposed Fees: 

Storm Drainage Utility Fee:   A new fee of $4.00 per month for a single family residence is 
proposed.  The fee assumes an average single family home will have 2,500 square feet (sf) 
of impervious surface (roof, sidewalks, driveway, patios, etc.) which drains to the city’s 
storm drainage system, which includes streets, storm sewers, drainageways and waterways.  

 The following residential and non-residential use classifications will be established: 
  

Class Category $/Month 
Residential    

1 Single family residential dwelling unit   4.00 
2 Duplexes (per dwelling unit)  4.00 
3 Mobile Home or Manufactured Home Park (per MH) 4.00 
4 Multi-family residential (per dwelling unit)  2.40 

 
Non 
Residential 

 
 

1 Category 1:  up to 2,500 square feet (sf) impervious surface 4.00 
2 Category 2:    2,501 to   5,000 sf impervious surface 6.00 
3 Category 3:    5,001 to 10,000 sf impervious surface 12.00 
4 Category 4:  10,001 to 15,000 sf impervious surface 20.00 
5 Category 5:  15,001 to 20,000 sf impervious surface 28.00 
6 Category 6:  20,000 to 30,000 sf impervious surface  40.00 
7 Category 7:  30,000 to 40,000 sf impervious surface 56.00 
8 Category 8:  40,000 or more sf imp surface   (avg size = 175,000 sf) 72.00 

 

The storm drainage utility fee for multi-family residential and non-residential properties is 
based on a proportional amount of impervious surface area found on the property.  The 
Planning Department has analyzed each non-residential use in the city using aerial 
photography and calculated the amount of impervious surface for each non-residential utility 
customer.   

Sewer Monthly Rate Reduction:   The city has paid for storm drainage system maintenance 
(staff, materials and services and capital outlay) from the Sewer Fund.  With the adoption of 
a new fee, the Sewer Fund will no longer pay for storm system operations and maintenance; 
therefore, the sewer fee should be reduced proportionately for the costs the city has incurred 
on an annual basis.  The Finance Director has calculated that the average single family 
residential customer has paid $2.75 per month over the past few years to cover the costs of 
storm system maintenance. 

 

City Council Staff Report, Storm Drainage Utility Fee  Page 2 of 4 
February 3, 2014 
 



Summary:  

 New SFR storm drainage fee  $4.00 per month 

 Reduction in Sewer fee  (2.75)    

 Net monthly fee increase  $1.25 per month in April 2014 

  

PURPOSE OF THE STORM DRAINAGE UTILITY & FEE  

The city currently pays for storm sewer operation and maintenance (O&M) out of the sewer fund.  
If the storm utility is adopted, this practice will end.  All storm drainage O & M will be paid for out 
of the new Storm Drainage Fund.    

The storm drainage fee will pay for the annual operating costs of the city’s storm drainage system. 
Here is a very rough estimate of annual expenses: 

Personnel (0.5 FTE)      $  37,500 

Materials & Services     $  75,000 

Capital Improvements           varies  

Admin / Equipment / Vehicle Replacement  $   75,000 

Contingency / Reserves    $   35,000 

Annual Budget     $ 250,000 to $275,000 

 

The creation of the storm drainage utility was recommended in the Storm Drainage Master Plan 
adopted by the City Council in 2010.   As part of the recent lawsuit settlement with the Santiam 
Water Control District, the City has agreed to establish the storm drainage utility and dedicate 
revenues to on-going storm system maintenance and specific projects listed in the memorandum of 
understanding.  Projects during the first two years include: 

• Automation of headgates (Salem Ditch, Main Canal, Butler Lateral, Mixed Ditch) 

• Update public works design standards – Chapter VI – storm drainage. 

• Water quality monitoring 

• Adaptive Management Group, a joint committee of SWCD & City to review, identify 
funding for and manage storm drainage improvement projects. 

• Adopt a storm drainage SDC 

• Develop a spill prevention and response plan   
 
 
NEXT STEPS 

o Review the DRAFT Storm Drainage Utility Fees and Revised Sewer Rates 

City Council Staff Report, Storm Drainage Utility Fee  Page 3 of 4 
February 3, 2014 
 



o Hold a public hearing on February 3, 2014 

o Discuss the DRAFT resolutions and make any changes  

o Adopt Resolutions 907 and 908 prior to March 3, 2014 to give staff time to enter rate 
codes into the utility billing system.  

 

OPTIONS 

After the public hearing in the Council may: 

a. Direct staff to bring back a revised proposal for consideration. 

b. Modify the proposed resolutions and rate categories 

c. Adopt Resolutions 907 and 908 

 
MOTIONS: 
 

1. Direct staff to bring back a revised storm drainage utility fee proposal. 
Move to direct staff to modify Resolutions 907 and 908 to address the following issues 
(identify the specific issues to be addressed). 

 
2. Direct staff to modify the proposed storm drainage utility rate categories. 

Move to direct staff to modify the rate categories in Resolution 908 as discussed by the 
council. 

 
3. Approve Resolution 907 – Sewer Rates and Resolution 908 – storm drainage 

utility rates.  
Move to approve Resolution 907 as presented (revised). 

Move to approve Resolution 908 as presented (revised). 

 

City Council Staff Report, Storm Drainage Utility Fee  Page 4 of 4 
February 3, 2014 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 907 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING SANITARY SEWER USER CHARGES 
 
 
 WHEREAS, SMC Section 13.24.1190 requires rates to be established for sanitary sewer 
service; 
 
 WHEREAS, the adopted Wastewater Facilities Master Plan identifies approximately $23 
million of improvements to the wastewater treatment facility and collection system between 2005 
and 2020;  
 

WHEREAS, the City must adopt rate increases to guarantee the City has sufficient funds to 
pay for on-going operations and maintenance, capital improvements and debt service for the 
wastewater utility;  
 
 WHEREAS, such rates are to be set in resolution form; 
 

WHEREAS, in July 2010 the Stayton City Council approved Resolution No. 859 to adopt a 
phased increase in the monthly sanitary sewer user charges from July 2010 through July 2014 in 
order to support the fiscal needs of the City’s wastewater system in accordance with the Wastewater 
Facilities Master Plan;  
 

WHEREAS, in December 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 964 to establish a storm 
water utility and directed staff to prepare a rate resolution to implement a monthly storm drainage 
user charge; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council finds that with the implementation of the storm 

drainage user charge, the City should concurrently reduce the sanitary sewer user charge by $2.75 
per month for a typical Class B residential customer because the costs for maintaining the storm 
drainage utility will no longer be paid for out of the Sewer Fund. 

  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Stayton City Council hereby adopts sanitary 
sewer user rates as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. SANITARY SEWER RATES (2013-2014) 
 

Effective April 1, 2014 users of the wastewater system are classified based on estimated 
loadings to the sewer system and rates are hereby established for each classification: 
 
Class Loading $/Month
A Up to 4,000 gal/month $39.62 
B Up to  6,000 gal/month   53.00 
C Up to 10,000 gal/month 98.97
D Over 10,000 gal/month (cost per thousand) 9.90
E Commercial Recreational Vehicle 39.62 
 Waste Disposal per gallon 0.43

 
 

  
Resolution No. 907 - Sanitary Sewer Rates Page 1 of 2 
 



SECTION 2. SANITARY SEWER RATES (2014-2015) 
 

Effective July 1, 2014 users of the wastewater system are classified based on estimated 
loadings to the sewer system and rates are hereby established for each classification: 
 
Class Loading $/Month
A Up to 4,000 gal/month $42.60 
B Up to  6,000 gal/month   56.98
C Up to 10,000 gal/month 106.40 
D Over 10,000 gal/month (cost per thousand) 10.64 
E Commercial Recreational Vehicle 42.60 
 Waste Disposal per gallon 0.46

 
 
SECTION 3.     WINTER CONSUMPTION AND ASSIGNMENT OF USER CLASSES 
 

Water consumption for the months of October through March shall be used to classify 
users except that the following classes are hereby established: 

 
Single Family Units and Manufactured Homes   Class B 
Duplexes with Individual Water Meters, per unit   Class B 
Apartments, per unit       Class B 

 
New users to the system, other than houses and apartments, shall be billed based on 
actual water usage.  Allowances for high summer water usage may be taken into account 
by the Finance Director for the City of Stayton.  Accounts in which there is no 
correlation between water usage and sewerage discharge, as determined above, will be 
individually calculated by the Finance Director for the City of Stayton. 

 
SECTION 4. REPEAL 
 
 Resolution No. 859 is hereby repealed effective April 1, 2014.  
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this ___ day of ____________, 2014. 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Signed: ____________, 2014      By:        

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
Signed: ____________, 2014  ATTEST:         
       Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

  
Resolution No. 907 - Sanitary Sewer Rates Page 2 of 2 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 908 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A STORM DRAINAGE UTILITY FEE 
 AND SETTING RATES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, SMC Chapter 13.32 requires rates to be established to cover the costs of 
operating and maintaining the City of Stayton storm drainage utility; 
 
 WHEREAS, the adopted Storm Drainage Facilities Master Plan identifies recommended 
storm drainage facility improvements which are needed to serve the property with the Stayton urban 
growth boundary by the year 2030;  
 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the proposed storm drainage facility improvements is 
$25.9 million;  
 

WHEREAS, the Storm Drainage Facilities Master Plan  recommends the city enact a storm 
drainage utility fee, a storm drainage systems development charge and also seek outside grant 
funding to finance the recommended storm drainage facility improvements;  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has concluded that the City needs to adopt a storm drainage 

utility fee to guarantee the City has sufficient funds to pay for on-going operations and maintenance, 
capital improvements and debt service for the storm drainage utility;  
 

WHEREAS, in December 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 964 to establish a storm 
water utility and directed staff to prepare a rate resolution to implement a monthly storm drainage 
utility fee;  

 
WHEREAS, such the storm drainage utility fee rates are to be adopted by resolution;  
 
WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council agreed that at the time of the implementation of the 

storm drainage utility fee, the City should phase in storm drainage utility fee rates over a three-year 
period in order to guarantee the City has sufficient revenue to cover anticipated expenditures for the 
storm drainage utility; and  

  
WHEREAS, the drainage fee authorized by this SMC Chapter 13.32 is not subject to the 

property tax limitations of Section 11(b), Article XI, of the Oregon Constitution.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Stayton City Council hereby adopts 
monthly rates for the storm drainage utility fee as follows: 
 
 
SECTION 1. STORM DRAINAGE UTILITY FEE (2014-2015) 
 

Effective April 1, 2014 a storm drainage utility fee is imposed and levied upon the responsible 
party for all developed property within the City and will be collected with the monthly utility 
bills.  The storm drainage utility fee shall be based on the direct and indirect use of or benefit 
derived from the use of city’s public storm drainage utility generated by the developed property. 

  
Resolution No. 908 – Storm Drainage Utility Fee Page 1 of 4 
 



 The monthly storm drainage utility fee is hereby established and imposed for the following 
residential and non-residential use classifications as follows:  

Class Category $/Month
Residential   

1 Single family residential dwelling unit   4.00 
2 Duplexes (per dwelling unit)  4.00
3 Mobile Home or Manufactured Home Park (per MH) 4.00 
4 Multi-family residential (per dwelling unit)  2.40

 
Non 
Residential 

 

1 Category 1:  up to 2,500 square feet (sf) impervious surface 4.00 
2 Category 2:    2,501 to   5,000 sf impervious surface 6.00
3 Category 3:    5,001 to 10,000 sf impervious surface 12.00 
4 Category 4:  10,001 to 15,000 sf impervious surface 20.00 
5 Category 5:  15,001 to 20,000 sf impervious surface 28.00
6 Category 6:  20,000 to 30,000 sf impervious surface  40.00 
7 Category 7:  30,000 to 40,000 sf impervious surface 56.00 
8 Category 8:  40,000 or more sf impervious surface 72.00 

 
 
SECTION 2. STORM DRAINAGE USER FEES (2015-2016) 

Effective April 1, 2015 the monthly storm drainage utility fee is hereby established and 
imposed for the following residential and non-residential use classifications as follows:  
Class Category $/Month
Residential   

1 Single family residential dwelling unit   4.50 
2 Duplexes (per dwelling unit)  4.50
3 Mobile Home or Manufactured Home Park (per MH) 4.50 
4 Multi-family residential (per dwelling unit)  2.70

 
Non 
Residential 

 

1 Category 1:  up to 2,500 square feet (sf) impervious surface 4.50 
2 Category 2:    2,501 to   5,000 sf impervious surface 6.75
3 Category 3:    5,001 to 10,000 sf impervious surface 13.50 
4 Category 4:  10,001 to 15,000 sf impervious surface 22.50 
5 Category 5:  15,001 to 20,000 sf impervious surface 31.50
6 Category 6:  20,000 to 30,000 sf impervious surface  45.00 
7 Category 7:  30,000 to 40,000 sf impervious surface 63.00 
8 Category 8:  40,000 or more sf impervious surface 81.00 

 

  
Resolution No. 908 – Storm Drainage Utility Fee Page 2 of 4 
 



 
SECTION 3. STORM DRAINAGE USER FEES (2016-2017) 

Effective April 1, 2016 the monthly storm drainage utility fee is hereby established and 
imposed for the following residential and non-residential use classifications as follows:  
Class Category $/Month
Residential   

1 Single family residential dwelling unit   5.00 
2 Duplexes (per dwelling unit)  5.00
3 Mobile Home or Manufactured Home Park (per MH) 5.00 
4 Multi-family residential (per dwelling unit)  3.00

 
Non 
Residential 

 

1 Category 1:  up to 2,500 square feet (sf) impervious surface 5.00 
2 Category 2:    2,501 to   5,000 sf impervious surface 7.50
3 Category 3:    5,001 to 10,000 sf impervious surface 15.00 
4 Category 4:  10,001 to 15,000 sf impervious surface 25.00
5 Category 5:  15,001 to 20,000 sf impervious surface 35.00
6 Category 6:  20,000 to 30,000 sf impervious surface  50.00 
7 Category 7:  30,000 to 40,000 sf impervious surface 70.00 
8 Category 8:  40,000 or more sf impervious surface 90.00 

 
 
SECTION 4. STORM DRAINAGE USER FEES (2017-2018) 

Effective April 1, 2017 the monthly storm drainage user fee is hereby established and 
imposed for the following residential and non-residential use classifications as follows:  
Class Category $/Month
Residential   

1 Single family residential dwelling unit   5.50 
2 Duplexes (per dwelling unit)  5.50
3 Mobile Home or Manufactured Home Park (per MH) 5.50 
4 Multi-family residential (per dwelling unit)  3.30

 
Non 
Residential 

 

1 Category 1:  up to 2,500 square feet (sf) impervious surface 5.50 
2 Category 2:    2,501 to   5,000 sf impervious surface 8.25
3 Category 3:    5,001 to 10,000 sf impervious surface 16.50 
4 Category 4:  10,001 to 15,000 sf impervious surface 27.50
5 Category 5:  15,001 to 20,000 sf impervious surface 38.50
6 Category 6:  20,000 to 30,000 sf impervious surface  55.00 
7 Category 7:  30,000 to 40,000 sf impervious surface 77.00 
8 Category 8:  40,000 or more sf impervious surface 99.00 

 
 

  
Resolution No. 908 – Storm Drainage Utility Fee Page 3 of 4 
 



SECTION 5.     ASSIGNMENT OF USER CLASSES 
In accordance with SMC Chapter 13.32 each residential and non-residential developed 
property in the City shall be assigned to a category of use in proportion to the amount of 
impervious surface on the property.  The Finance Director may review and modify the 
category of use assignment, either upon request of the customer or as warranted, as permitted 
in SMC Chapter 13.32. 

 
SECTION 6.     APPEALS 

In accordance with SMC Chapter 13.32, any utility customer who disputes any interpretation 
given by the City as to the category of use assigned to such owner's property may request a 
review and appeal such interpretation.  At the time of filing an appeal with the City, a 
responsible part shall pay the following fees: 

A. Review by the Finance Director      No filing fee 

B. Appeal to City Administrator       $ 20 
 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this ___ day of ____________,  2014. 
 

 
CITY OF STAYTON 

 
 
Signed: ____________, 2014      By:        

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
Signed: ____________, 2014  ATTEST:         
       Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

  
Resolution No. 908 – Storm Drainage Utility Fee Page 4 of 4 
 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: February 3, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Lease Agreement, 352 E. Florence Street 

  
 
ISSUE: 
Lease renewal on the commercial space rented by the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge 
#2639, located at 352 E. Florence Street, Stayton, Oregon.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that Council approve the attached Lease Agreement between the City of Stayton 
and the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 and authorize the City Administrator 
to sign the agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Currently the Moose Lodge is renting the building for $500.00 per month; they are requesting that 
the City Council authorize the City Administrator to sign the lease renewal for one year at the 
current monthly rate of $500.00 per month.  
 
The Moose Lodge had added Oregon State Lottery in an attempt to increase revenues in 2013.  The 
2013 profit and loss statement shows some lottery earnings there were also expenses associated with 
the gaming.  Administrator Tom Garrity reported that the earnings received from lottery gaming for 
the last six months the machines were in place was only $126.00.  The lottery gaming machines have 
been removed. 
 
The Moose lodge was financially struggling to exist last year when they came to the City Council to 
ask for a rent reduction.  They had been paying $800.00 a month and the rent was due to increase to 
$1,000.00.  Tom Garrity feels that their financial situation has not improved enough to be able to 
absorb a rent increase at this time. 
 
 
 
 
   
 



FACTS AND FINDINGS:  
 
The Stayton Moose Lodge is active in the community and they feel that having a building for their 
lodge activities in the downtown area will bring more people into the downtown.  Staff agrees that 
having a building occupied rather than vacant is beneficial. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The City will realize revenues of $6,000.00 during the term of this lease agreement.  
 
OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the attached lease agreement between the City of Stayton and the Stayton Loyal 

Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 as presented. 
 
2.         Approve the lease agreement between the City of Stayton and the Stayton Loyal Order of 

Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639, with modifications. 
 

3.        Not approve the lease agreement between the City of Stayton and the Stayton Loyal Order of 
Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 at this time. 

 
MOTION(S): 
For Option 1:  Offer a motion to approve the lease agreement between the City of Stayton and 

the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 and authorize the City 
Administrator to sign the lease agreement. 

 
For Option 2:   Offer a motion to approve the lease agreement between the City of Stayton and 

the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 with modifications and 
authorize the City Administrator to sign the lease amendment. 

 
For Option 3:  No motion necessary. 































 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor A. Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: February 3, 2013 
 
S UBJECT: Solicit bids to renovate 260 N. 2nd Avenue  
 
ISSUE: The issue before the Council is whether or not to direct City staff to move forward 
with renovations to the City’s building located at 260 N. 2nd Avenue. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: In December, the Santiam Historical Society was 
notified that their lease to use the building would end. They have made significant progress 
moving their items from the building, and it is expected to be vacant in early February.  
 
Sr. Engineering Technician Mike Brash has consulted with numerous contractors regarding 
the renovation of the historic building located at 260 N. 2nd Avenue. Contractors have 
provided him with cost estimates to bring the building up to code and renovate it into a 
courthouse. Estimated costs are approximately $100,000, and estimates were distributed to 
the Mayor and Council for review.  
 
With the City Council’s approval, Mr. Brash will move forward with a formal bid request to 
complete the necessary renovations. The renovations will need to be completed by early June 
in order for the Municipal Court to be established. Mr. Brash plans to have the contractors 
ready to begin work as soon as the building is vacant. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval to move forward with the bid 
process for renovations to the building at 260 N. 2nd Avenue.  
 
OPTIONS: 

1) Authorize staff to move forward and obtain bids for renovations. 
2) Do not proceed with building renovations at this time. 

   
MOTIONS: 

1) Offer a motion to authorize City Staff to move forward with renovations to the 
building at 260 N. 2nd Avenue. 

2) Offer a motion to direct staff to proceed with an alternative.  














